
Spanish Fork City Council Minutes June 2, 2009 1

Adopted Minutes 
Spanish Fork City Council Meeting 

June 2, 2009 
 
Elected Officials Present: Mayor Joe L Thomas, Councilmember’s G. Wayne 
Andersen, Councilman, Steve Leifson, Richard M. Davis, Jens P. Nielson, Rod 
Dart 
 
Staff Present: Dave Oyler, City Manager; Dave Anderson, City Planner; Junior 
Baker City Attorney; John Bowcut; IS Director; Richard Heap, Public Works 
Director; Dee Rosenbaum, Public Safety Director; Seth Perrins, Assistant City 
Manager; Dale Robinson, Parks and Recreation Director; Kent Clark, Finance 
Director; Kimberly Robinson, City Recorder 
 
Citizens Present:  Kena Mathews, Christy Hardmon, Rich Harris, Lana Creer 
Harris, Corene Elliott, Ben Barber, Melody Barber, Marvin Wharton, Jackie 
Mitchell, Joe Mitchell, Shawn Eliot, Vern Keeslar 
 
CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE: 
 
Mayor Thomas called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Councilman Leifson led in the pledge of allegiance. 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
Councilman Dart congratulated the Boys 5A Baseball team for winning state. He 
also thanked those participating in the recycling program. 
 
Councilman Leifson commented we have some great campgrounds being used. 
He thanked those who participated in the Memorial Day program, and thanked 
everyone for participating in the recycling program. He encourages all to get 
involved that can.  
 
Councilman Davis thanked the veterans and all those that helped with the 
memorial services. He thanked the sexton and the grounds crew up at the 
cemetery it is very well kept. He received a letter from Salem City thanking our 
Fire Department for helping on a fire in Salem.  
 
Councilman Andersen thanked those that participated in the memorial services; 
and also stated we have a lot to be thankful for and proud of. Things are moving 
forward with Fiesta Days. They should not only be proud of the boy’s baseball but 
the girl’s softball they both played well. 
 
Mayor Thomas asked those that are not in the recycling program to please 
participate. He congratulated the boys and the girl’s teams. He thanked and 



Spanish Fork City Council Minutes June 2, 2009 2

complimented the memorial services and how great the cemetery looked. He had 
a chance to go to Salt Lake and fly on a refueling mission; he thanked the troops 
and the National Guard units for keeping us safe. He then read a statement of 
support to the guard and national reserve, that the participating mayors signed.  
 
CONSENT ITEMS: 
 

a. Minutes of Spanish Fork City Council Meeting – May 19, 2009 
b. Nebo Interlocal Agreement for Custodial Services 
c. Library Electronic Maintenance Contract 

 
Councilman Leifson made a Motion to approve the consent items. Councilman 
Andersen Seconded and the motion Passed all in favor.  
 
Councilman Andersen made a Motion to open the public hearing for the Fiscal 
Year 2010 Budget. Councilman Dart Seconded and the motion Passed all in 
favor at 6:11 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
Budget Fiscal Year 2010 
 
*Councilman Nielson arrived at the meeting at 6:12 p.m. 
 
Mr. Clark explained they have had over a month to discuss the budget. 
He briefly reviewed some of the budget and tried to explain it to the public. He 
noted where the sales tax comes from and how we are doing. We have dropped 
10% over the last few years in sales tax, property tax has been about the same, 
building has gone down, interest earnings have gone down. He explained the city 
has been able to maintain up to 17% of the general fund reserve. The City has 
been cutting the budget but has tried to continue to provide all services and not 
raise property tax. The transfer of funds, such as from the electric funds, helps to 
fund some of the services that are within our own city.  
 
Mayor Thomas explained because of the economic times we have not been able 
to sell excess UMPA power like we had previously done. We have seen a smaller 
increase in power costs than the others. He stated our membership in UMPA 
certainly serves the city and we have used the rate stabilization fund to lessen the 
impact of the proposed rate increase.   
 
Kena Mathews  
Ms. Mathews is the executive director of Habitat for Humanity. She explained they 
are requesting building permit fees to be waived. 
 
Mr. Robinson explained the cost for the new pool drain system and why we are 
required to have one. 



Spanish Fork City Council Minutes June 2, 2009 3

 
Mr. Clark explained the process for the budget which will be adopted in two weeks. 
 
Mr. Heap explained they have held off hiring another Assistant City Engineer and 
would like to hire an Engineering Technician which will save money and help the 
city to get the needed work done.  
 
Mayor Thomas asked about the benefits packages. 
 
Mr. Oyler stated they didn’t change the benefits package, he noted when you 
compare our premiums to other premiums we are pretty conservative.  
 
This item was opened for public comment. 
 
Jackie Mitchell 
Ms. Mitchell asked how do the windmills tie into us saving money. She also asked 
about the golf course funding and stated when Mayor Thomas ran for Mayor it was 
an issue, one they always looked at cutting. Also as he ran for Mayor he wanted 
information on the electric bills that states where any subsidy goes, she also would 
like clarification about savings on the electric bills. She asked about the North Park 
and any updates on it. She would like to know exactly what they are paying for. As 
far as Habitat for Humanity she is all for people getting into homes, but there are 
other ways for them to get help, she thought Orrin Hatch had passed legislation to 
help. 
 
Mayor Thomas explained where the power goes with the windmills. The city has 
nothing to do with the power but it does come into the power grid locally, he noted 
that on paper it goes to Salt Lake. The city receives approximately $16,000 a year 
for leasing the ground to the windmill company. The land we leased was of no 
value so any money coming from that is money in our coffers. Also the windmills 
are real property and we get a little property tax from them but the school district 
gets most of it. He then explained the city hired a new golf pro who was employee 
of the quarter and has made a significant improvement on the revenues at the golf 
course. The electric bill is something everyone pays into, it generates a large 
amount of revenue. The ability to show the breakdown monthly on the utility bill is 
not feasible except for the possibility of something simple. He explained about 
North Park they took out a park and are building a new one in its place, the 
businesses are coming and things are moving ahead. He explained that the South 
County Mayors meet and one of the issues they discussed is that the big 
businesses go around and ask who can give the best deal and then they go with 
that City. He noted again the advantage of being members of UMPA and what it 
saves the citizens of Spanish Fork.  
 
Councilman Leifson explained in Spanish Fork most services costs are going 
down and in other cities they are going up, in our city we have managed it well and 
the citizen’s benefit from the City keeping the costs down, they understand it is 



Spanish Fork City Council Minutes June 2, 2009 4

tough out there for everyone. He complimented staff and the employees for all the 
hard work they have done to save. 
 
Councilman Davis agreed, he complimented the electrical company and the city 
staff they have worked hard to keep costs low.  
 
Mayor Thomas stated, as a statistic, Utah has some the lowest electrical rates in 
the nation and Spanish Fork is among the lowest in Utah. He also responded 
about the habitat for humanity and stated the Council has not made a decision 
regarding that item. 
 
Councilman Nielson is always interested to know what people think about our 
programs. 
 
Councilman Davis noted a lot of businesses look at the quality of life, they bring in 
sales tax and that is a major revenue source that runs our city. It really does, in the 
long run, bring the money back into the city. That is what a city is all about, that is 
why you move there so you have quality of life. One thing about our electrical 
company is that it does subsidize the golf course and it comes back to the citizens 
for quality of life not to line some employee’s pockets. That is what a city is all 
about. It is a way for all our citizens to enjoy each other and help each other out. 
 
Councilman Nielson explained his comment some of the items can be shown as 
dollars and cents and some are the quality of life. His personal feeling is that we 
can always offer some of these services. 
 
Melody Barber 
Ms. Barber feels there is a proper role of government; she feels they could prove 
the library brings back quality of life. She would like to know what the percentage 
of users that will be helped by a golf course.  
 
Councilman Nielson stated they already have discussed those items. 
 
Marvin Wharton 
Mr. Wharton feels they have a pretty good town; he was shocked that we have a 
golf course and gun club that is costing us money. He does not feel he can 
support this habitat for humanity item either.  
 
Corene Elliott 
Ms. Elliott is a resident of Spanish Fork and she loves this city. 
 
Ms. Mitchell wants to congratulate the employees that have saved the city money; 
she feels they should have a benefit for their hard work.  
 
Mayor Thomas explained there is some defensiveness and the average citizen 
does not know what all goes into the budget. At the end of the day the city needs 



Spanish Fork City Council Minutes June 2, 2009 5

to run as efficiently as possible. The Council does what they can and more citizens 
need to get involved and vote.  
 
Ms. Barber said she would like some more itemized information on last year’s 
amounts and this year’s projections or some type of information on the utility bill. 
She feels they could show a lot more research.  
 
Mr. Perrins explained some of the information discussed was in the newsletter. 
 
Councilman Leifson made a Motion to close the public hearing. Councilman 
Nielson Seconded and the motion Passed all in favor at 7:21 p.m. 
 
Fiesta Days Rodeo Royalty 
 
Queen Alyssa Lewis and attendant Chastity Arnold came to say they are excited 
for the Fiesta Days Celebration this year and invited everyone to come out and 
participate. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Mountainland Association of Government Nebo Transportation Study 
 
Mr. Anderson explained Shawn Eliot with MAG and Vern Keeslar with Interplan 
are here tonight to discuss the future plan for the project and they have a 
presentation to make. 
 
Mr. Eliott made a presentation regarding south county growth and how urbanized 
we are becoming.  
 
Mr. Keeslar explained the corridor study for the south county area. He stated it is a 
lot better and cheaper for the tax payers if you plan for the corridor rather than 
having to pay for the homes and businesses built later. 
 
Mr. Eliott explained they want to work hard to incorporate this study into the City’s 
Master Plan. They have done a lot of work to try to get this corridor contiguous. He 
explained the light rail and commuter rail differences. They will be back in the 
coming months to work with staff to have this study adopted into the city’s master 
plan.  
 
Discussion on Business Park Zone 
 
Mr. Anderson explained there are four items he would like to discuss with the 
Council tonight. He asked how the Council would like zoning enforcement to be 
handled. They feel there are some specific characteristics that should be in 
medium industrial zoning, light industrial, and business park setting.   
 



Spanish Fork City Council Minutes June 2, 2009 6

Mayor Thomas also added that the city should give themselves flexibility for the 
market to determine some if it. He stated he likes the direction this is going. 
 
Councilman Leifson likes where this is headed and would like some more 
information. 
 
Mr. Anderson stated this will have a positive affect on property values. He asked 
there are a few situations in the city where they have been pretty permissive 
because zoning enforcement is not fun. They have been lenient in giving property 
owners quite some time to get problems corrected. As they go to the next step 
with enforcement for the zoning code, even if they enforce it in a very soft manner, 
and just hit on the big stuff there are some expensive issues to meet some 
building code requirements that have the potential to be hard for the business 
owners.  
 
Mayor Thomas would like to find some solution that meets the end result. He 
would like some creativity and would not like to put a business out of business.  
 
Mr. Anderson explained there are currently businesses that are operating in 
buildings that were never permitted to be built. There are issues with people 
occupying buildings without certificates of occupancy.  
 
Mayor Thomas would like a summary of the issues/problems.  
 
Mr. Anderson explained they are discussing this tonight because they have 
businesses coming to the city stating the ones not in compliance are causing 
problems with the ones that are. He asked if he was to send the list tonight how 
long would they need to deal with these properties. He will meet with each of the 
Council to discuss the issues.  
 
Mr. Oyler stated there are issues they have been working on for two years. They 
are more than willing to work with the Council and make sure they are on the 
same page.  
 
Mayor Thomas feels they would rather proactively take care of these problems.  
 
Mr. Anderson stated dealing with these issues will not be pleasant but done 
properly will have a positive impact on our community.  
 
ADJOURN TO RDA MEETING: 
 
Councilman Leifson made a Motion to open the RDA meeting. Councilman Davis 
Seconded and the motion Passed all in favor at 8:10 p.m. 
 



Spanish Fork City Council Minutes June 2, 2009 7

Councilman Andersen made a Motion to adjourn out of RDA and back to regular 
session. Councilman Davis Seconded and the motion Passed all in favor at 8:15 
p.m. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Mr. Clark explained the airport budget is also a part of the FY 2010 budget. 
 
Councilman Leifson made a Motion to adjourn. Councilman Dart Seconded and 
the motion Passed all in favor at 8:15 p.m. 
 
ADOPTED: June 16, 2009     
             
      Kimberly Robinson, City Recorder 


